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X_GOOD RUINS X_ALTERED _MOVED DATE 

_FAIR _UNEXPOSED 

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

Walters Bath No, 2 was built for the City of Baltimore during 1901-02 by 
Henry Walters 0848-19311. Mr, Walters, a Baltimore art collector and 
philanthropist, contributed four bath houses to the city even though he was 
living in New York City after 1894. Located at Washington Boulevard (then 
known as Columbia Avenue} and Callender Alley,' this second bath house was 
built so as to serve congested neighborhoods in southeast Baltimore in the Parkin 
Street area. It was. designed by architect George Archer. 

The design of Walters Bath No. 2'is a very simplified form of Renaissance 
Reylval popularized at the turn of the century by architects such as McKim, 
Mead and white. In the Bath Commissioners' report, the design is called 
<Free Colonial", The Bath Is a small brick building of 40'-0" x 70'-6" laid in 
Flemish bond w^th. til act headers a,nd Maryland Itmestone trimming. The forty-
foQt facade of four Bays facing south onto Washington Boulevard is the only 
part which Is not strictly utilitarian in design. It is of one story on a 
high basement with a solid brick balustrade. In the center are two large 
Windows which, light the administrative office. These have heavy limestone 
lintels with, oversized keystones and stone sills. A wide belt course of 
limestone forming the Itntels for the two central basement windows is intersected 
by the two end doors. Each of the double doors has been set within an 
arched opening of brfck with a plain tympanum, limestone impost blocks and large 
keystone. The entrance vestibules have steps and wainscoting of McMullin 
gray marble and ceramic tile floors. Above the two central windows within the 
frieze there was, until recently plastered over, a stone plaque reading 
'THE WALTERS tV<UC BATHS'. At the corner of the facade finishing the end 
toward the alley Is an abstraction of a brick pilaster on a pedestal. The 
cornice of the pedestal is formed by the belt course inscribed with the date 
'1901* and the base is an extension of the floor of a shallow terrace elevated 
midway between the sidewalk and the first floor level. 

. . While the exterior of the Bath has remained unchanged with the 
exception of the sign, the baths and laundry have been removed. The left 
door-led into the women's waiting room and the right, into the men's. These 
two rooms, now without the wooden benches which lined their walls, and the 
office have not been remodelled. Interior architraves are wide, half-round 
members. A rectangular transom extends to the ceiling above each door. The 
bath facilities were on the first floor, and a stairway with a skylight led 
down to the basement laundry and boiler room. 

The plan for Bath No. 1 (131-3 S. High Street) has been included since 
the two~schemes were identical, except for a few improvements in equipment^: 
when Bath No. 2 was built. While the building was being usedTfor its 
intended purposes, the basement contained large laundry and boiler rooms. 
The largest portion of the* laundry which was for public use accommodated 
three women at one time, each provided with two earthenware washtrays, hot and 
cold water, a steam wringer and steam dry-room space. The steam dry-room 

(See Continuation Sheet No. 1) 
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

Bathing establishments in Baltimore began as far back as 1800, when William 
Finn was keeper of the baths on the west side of Jones Falls. As a private enter­
prise, the service they provided was considered to be a luxury. Even though the 
bathtub began to be installed tn homes during the second half of the nineteenth 
century, only 1Q% of the dwellings of Baltimore's densely populated sections 
had them by the 1890's. Thus, the Walters Baths were the first such structures 
designed in Baltimore, not for recreation, but to provide an opportunity for 
cleanliness to all persons by offering them a shower, spray or tub bath, not a 
swimming tank. 

All of the Walters Baths in Baltimore are principally the result of the 
efforts of two men, Reverend Thomas M. Beadenkoph, who originated the humani- "". 
tarian proposal and Henry Walters who provided the funds. They evolved from 
previous projects of Reverend Beadenkoph, the pastor of Canton Congregational 
Church, who in 1893 began operating a bathing shore during the warmer months 
along the waterfront at the west end of Second Street. The Canton Beach was such 
a success; that he acquired an old gospel tent which became a portable shower 
stall using water from'a fireplug. By 1894, the City had appropriated $500.00 
for the operation of Canton Beach and, at Mayor Latrobe's suggestion, a Bath 
Commission was created and two more bathing shores established. 

' * 

On' Noyember 27, 1898, a:Public'meeting was held to discuss the possible-
erection of public baths for Baltimore which was far behind other cities in this 
movement. Boston was spending $35,000 annually for this purpose; New York 
$48,000; Philadelphia, Chicago, Buffalo, Detroit and Wilmington, Delaware were 
-spending much, larger amounts. An appeal for subscriptions was made but the only 
significant interest in the subject came from Mr. Henry Walters.^Two of the Bath 
Commissioners, Messrs. Levering and Morriss, conferred with him in January of 1899; 
and, on February 2nd, Walters agreed to erect three Baths at a maximum of $15,000 
each. After construction, they were to be given to the city who would assume the 
maintenance costs.. Actually, the original estimated cost was too low and Mr. -
Walters agreed to donate$50,000 for the first two baths. In the final accounting, 

. Walters Batn.No..2 cost427,0G0. When it opened in April of 1902, Bath No. 
charged three cents for adults and one cent for children for soap and towels andl^ 
two and one-half cents per*hour for laundry privileges. Later, baths'cost five 
cents when one could afford the fee, a charge that remained until the publicfbath 
system was abolished at the end of 1959. 

'. 

(See Continuation Sheet No. 1) 
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DESCRIPTION, ITEM NUMBER 7 

was entirely of metal and contained twenty racks. The private laundry was re­
served for washing bath towels, using a'46-inch rotary washer and a 20-inch 
centrifugal extractor. To the rear of the basement was the boiler room with 
two 15 horse power boilers, a Tobey's hot water heater and an 8 horse power 
engine. 

Much attention was given to designing sanitary facilities. The bath 
cabins had cement floors and partitions, seats, etc., of Vermont green slate 
with nickel-plated fittings. Each cabin had two compartments, for dressing 
and for bathing. A ventilation system of ducts pulled in fresh air through 
openings along the longitudinal walls and then forced 'vitiated' air out of a 
large brick vent-shaft at the rear of the building. Four large skylights 
provided illumination and additional ventilation throughout the bath area. 

SIGNIFICANCE, ITEM NUMBER 8, CONTINUATION SHEET NO. 1 continued 

Walters Bath No. 2 - 900 Washington Boulevard - Baltimore, Md. 

Bath No. 2 is the only surviving example of Walters' gifts to the 
people of Baltimore. These Baths represented a solution to improve sanitary 
conditions in crowded, industrial cities. Reverend Beadenkoph's stated 
reasons for supporting the Baths were that personal cleanliness had a close 
relationship with health and self-respect, that a bath toned up the morale, 
and made one feel better, and that a family, however poor, which bathed 
regularly has an "espirit de corps" lacking in other families who did not. 
This was entirely consistent with contemporary efforts to improve health and 
living conditions for the urban working classes, a movement which was present 
during the latter nineteenth century and increased, as did the number of 
Baltimore's baths, during the early twentieth century. 

Walters Bath No. 2 is the only surviving building of a series of four 
which Walters gave to the city. It was the duty of the Free Public Bath 
Commission, increased to seven members in 1900, to supervise these baths as 
well as comfort stations, swimming pools, school shower programs and 
portable shower baths, all of which were operating by 1925, 

(See. Continuation Sheet No. 2) 
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SIGNIFICANCE, ITEM NUMBER 8 continued 

This surviving Walters Bath building, then, represents a significant 
part of Baltimore's cleanliness campaign to improve public welfare, a movement 
which began late but became a model program for other cities. 

The building is presently occupied by the maintenance division of the 
public schools. However, the Baltimore City Planning Department has plans 
to use the building for a mint multiple purpose center. This project has 
been included in their capital budget. 
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION 

BEGINNING at the northwest corner of Washington Boulevard and Calendar 
. Street heading west for a distance of 61'5"; thence, north bounding on the adjacent 

lot for a distance of 101'; thence, easterly parallel to Washington Boulevard for a 
distance of 61'5"; thence, south on Calendar Street for a distance of 101' to the 
point of beginning. 
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